
Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 1 of 18 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR JOINT MEETING OF 
THE MONTCLAIR CITY COUNCIL AND REDEVEL-
OPMENT AGENCY AND MONTCLAIR HOUSING 
CORPORATION BOARDS HELD ON TUESDAY, 
FEBRUARY 19, 2008, AT 6:59 P.M. IN THE CITY 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 5111 BENITO STREET, 
MONTCLAIR, CALIFORNIA 

 

 
 

 I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor/Chairman Eaton called the meeting to order at 6:59 p.m. and 
asked that cell phones, pagers, and other electronic devices be silenced 
as a courtesy to others while the meeting is in session. 

 
 II. INVOCATION 

Mayor/Chairman Eaton gave the Invocation. 
 
 III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Member/Director Ruh led those assembled in the Pledge. 
 
 IV. ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor/Chairman Eaton; Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chairman Dutrey; 
Council Members/Directors Paulitz, Raft, and Ruh; City 
Manager/Executive Director McDougal; Deputy City Manager/ 
Director of Administrative Services Starr; Director of Redevel-
opment/Public Works Staats; Director of Community Develop-
ment/Agency Planner Lustro; City/Agency Engineer Hudson; 
City Attorney/Agency Counsel Robbins; City Clerk/Agency 
Secretary Jackson 

 
 V. PRESENTATIONS – None 
 
 VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Projects and Prioritization of Funding for the Fiscal 
Year 2007–08 Community Development Block Grant Program 

Mayor Eaton declared it the time and place set for public hearing 
to consider projects and prioritization of funding for the Fiscal 
Year 2007–08 Community Development Block Grant Program and 
invited comments from the public. 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 2 of 18 

There being no one in the audience wishing to speak, Mayor Eaton 
closed the public hearing and returned the matter to the City 
Council for its consideration. 

Moved by Council Member Paulitz and seconded by Council Member 
Raft that the City Council approve the following projects and priori-
tization of funding for the Fiscal Year 2007–08 Community Devel-
opment Block Grant Program: 

Code Enforcement $ 40,000 
Foundation Area 11 207,850 
Foundation Area 12 25,000 
Graffiti Abatement 40,000* 
Montclair Golden Express  8,150* 

 TOTAL $ 321,000 

 *Total public services projects:  $48,150 

Motion carried unanimously as follows: 

AYES: Ruh, Raft, Paulitz, Dutrey, Eaton 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 

B. Adoption of Resolution No. 08–2719 Approving, Authorizing, 
and Directing Execution of Joint Powers Agreement No. 08–07 
Relating to the California Municipal Finance Authority 

Adoption of Resolution No. 08–2721 Approving the Issuance 
of  Tax–Exempt Revenue Bonds by the California Municipal 
Finance Authority for Montclair Senior Housing Partners, LP 
(National Community Renaissance) With Respect to a Multi-
family Senior Housing Project 

Mayor Eaton declared it the time and place set for public hear-
ing  to consider adoption of Resolution No. 08–2719 approving, 
authorizing, and directing execution of Joint Powers Agreement 
No. 08–07 and Resolution No. 08–2721 approving the issuance of 
tax–exempt revenue bonds by the California Municipal Finance 
Authority for Montclair Senior Housing Partners, LP (National 
Community Renaissance) with respect to a multifamily senior hous-
ing project and invited comments from the public. 

There being no one in the audience wishing to speak, Mayor Eaton 
closed the public hearing and returned the matter to the City 
Council for its consideration. 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 3 of 18 

Moved by Council Member Ruh and seconded by Council Member 
Raft that the following actions be taken: 

1. That Resolution No. 08–2719, entitled, "A Resolution of the 
City Council of the City of Montclair Approving, Authoriz-
ing, and Directing Execution of Joint Powers Agreement 
No. 08–07 Relating to the California Municipal Finance 
Authority," be read by number and title only, further reading 
be waived, and it be declared adopted. 

2. That Resolution No. 08–2721, entitled, "A Resolution of the 
City Council of the City of Montclair Approving the 
Issuance of Tax–Exempt Revenue Bonds by the California 
Municipal Finance Authority for Montclair Senior Housing 
Partners, LP, With Respect to a Multifamily Senior Housing 
Project," be read by number and title only, further reading be 
waived, and it be declared adopted. 

The City Council unanimously waived the reading of the Resolu-
tions.* 

Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey inquired as follows: 

1. Is there a funding shortfall for the Senior Housing Project? 

Director of Redevelopment/Public Works Staats answered, 
"There is still a funding shortfall." 

2. Would the Redevelopment Agency be applying for additional 
funding to cover the shortfall? 

Director of Redevelopment/Public Works Staats answered, 
"Yes." 

 *Resolution Nos. 08–2719 and 08–2721 were unanimously adopted 
by the following vote: 

AYES: Ruh, Raft, Paulitz, Dutrey, Eaton 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 

C. Adoption of Resolution No. 08–2724 Approving the Following: 

Tentative Tract Map No. 18213 Resubdividing a 15.1–Acre Site 
Into 23 Numbered Lots and 9 Lettered Lots for Condominium 
Purposes 

Precise Plan of Design  for a 290–Unit Residential Development 
Within the North Montclair Downtown Specific Plan 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 4 of 18 

Mayor Eaton declared it the time and place set for public hearing 
to consider adoption of Resolution No. 08–2724 approving Tenta-
tive Tract Map No. 18213 resubdividing a 15.1–acre site into 
23 numbered lots and 9 lettered lots for condominium purposes 
and a Precise Plan of Design for a 290–unit residential develop-
ment within the North Montclair Downtown Specific Plan (NMDSP) 
and invited comments from the public. 

Mr. Jeffrey J. Chelwick, Senior Principal of Multifamily Design, 
William Hezmalhalch Architects, Inc., 2850 Red Hill Avenue, 
Suite 200, Santa Ana, noted he has worked with staff for almost 
three years on many different alternate site plans, building plans, 
plan changes, product changes, and architectural designs and that 
staff should be commended for its diligence in working on the 
project.  He noted the proposed project is consistent with the 
NMDSP and that he concurs with staff on the 56 conditions of 
approval.  He added that William Hezmalhalch Architects is quite 
pleased with the project's architectural design elements. 

There being no one else in the audience wishing to speak, Mayor 
Eaton closed the public hearing and returned the matter to the City 
Council for its consideration. 

Council Member Raft noted she has carefully reviewed the "very 
beautiful" proposal and is excited about the future development of 
the project.  She asked the approximate price range of the units. 

Mr. David E. Geiser, AIA, Managing Director, Design and 
Construction, Merlone Geier Management, LLC, 12555 High Bluff 
Drive, Suite 385, San Diego, advised that the unit prices will be 
market driven. 

Council Member Paulitz noted for the record that establishing the 
minimum parking requirements for residential uses within the 
NMDSP at one covered parking space per unit "is not a good idea 
unless it is supplemented by a parking structure someplace on the 
property."  He inquired as to the reason for not including access to 
the subdivision from Arrow Highway. 

Director of Community Development Lustro responded that there 
are site constraints with regard to the grade difference between 
Arrow Highway and that particular part of the former Sam's Club 
site.  He clarified that the area is considerably lower than Arrow 
Highway and that a large portion of the site would be lost if the 
developer were to construct a road from Arrow Highway into the 
subdivision.  He added that ultimately, this project and the future 
development to the east would have access to Arrow Highway. 

Council Member Paulitz requested clarification on the "split" 
garages. 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 5 of 18 

Director of Community Development Lustro advised that the split 
garages would occur only on the corner units and would be 
accessible from either side. 

Council Member Paulitz inquired as follows: 

1. Concerning Condition of Approval No. 18.d.iii(a)(i), what is 
the composition of the siding? 

Director of Community Development Lustro responded that 
the "Monterey"–style town homes would have second-story 
wooden balconies and siding. 

2. Do the balconies protrude? 

Director of Community Development Lustro replied that they 
would protrude from the building wall and would have roofs 
and railings. 

3. With regard to Conditions of Approval No. 18.d.iii(e) and 
No. 18.d.iii(f), specifying the five courtyard areas be vertically 
articulated and the entrances to the row house units include 
elevated porches or stoops, would the units comply with the 
Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA)? 

Director of Community Development Lustro responded that 
the primary reason for including those two conditions is that 
they are specified in the development standards for the 
NMDSP.  One of the primary goals in achieving the urban 
design character of the developments in the area is to include 
steps, stoops, and front porches on units.  Staff recognizes 
that a certain number of the courtyard and row house units 
must be ADA–accessible; however, having those design 
elements on the balance of the units will create that urban 
character and appearance. 

4. Would there be much cutting and filling to obtain that design 
because of the level nature of the site? 

Director of Community Development Lustro responded that 
the developer would be doing a lot of cutting and filling to 
build this project. 

5. What are the advantages and disadvantages of including a 
tot lot in either the linear park or private community 
recreation area? 

Director of Community Development Lustro noted the 
former applicant was advised to design the linear green space 
as a passive turf area with minimal improvements (walking 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 6 of 18 

paths, benches, and lighting) because of its dimensions.  
When broached by the Planning Commission at its hearing on 
this item, the applicant explained it was only following staff's 
direction.  He noted the play equipment would require 
additional maintenance. 

6. Would the development be subject to generalized 
maintenance? 

Director of Community Development Lustro replied that it 
would be regulated by a homeowners' association (HOA) and 
Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs). 

7. Why are the alleys being designed with either a crown and 
concrete V–gutters or with a maximum 2 percent slope in one 
direction and a concrete V–gutter on one side? 

City Engineer Hudson responded that staff was looking 
for  something other than an inverted crown with a concrete 
V–gutter down the center in an effort to achieve cross–flow 
drainage on the street so water could drain to one side with 
perhaps a rolled curb and gutter on that side. 

Council Member Ruh inquired as follows: 

1. What is the concept of an urban village? 

Director of Community Development Lustro replied that one 
of the goals of the NMDSP is to introduce urban–style residen-
tial products to the area to begin the process of creating a 
"downtown" environment with walkable neighborhoods, local–
serving retail and service businesses, and convenient access 
to rail/mass transit.  Theoretically, the urban village concept 
creates an environment in which individuals can live, work, 
shop, and entertain in a single urban area along with being 
self–sustainable, environmentally friendly, and which 
encourages community development and bonding, he added. 

2. Are they to be entities unto themselves or are they to be 
entities that are to be incorporated into the community at 
large? 

Director of Community Development Lustro expressed his 
opinion that one of the challenges of developing a new down-
town is to create a concentration of residential units that do 
not presently exist in that area.  Aside from the well–estab-
lished 40–unit subdivision immediately east of the subject 
site, he stated that the area is, for the most part, composed 
of vacant and underutilized industrial lots.  He noted that 
ultimately, the goal is to be able to tie the proposed project, 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 7 of 18 

if it is approved, in with future developments in terms of scale 
and character and to make all projects pedestrian–oriented 
with pedestrian linkages between each project. 

Council Member Ruh noted very few urban villages and transit–
oriented developments have privatized recreation areas, with the 
concept being to take advantage of available recreational oppor-
tunities throughout the village.  He expressed his opinion that 
the  proposed subdivision, with its HOA and private community 
recreation area, would, other than for shopping purposes, become 
"an island unto itself."  He asked how the proposed project was 
conceptualized. 

City Manager McDougal clarified that the proposed park site to be 
located in the linear green space would be a public park and the 
responsibility of the City, not the HOA. 

Council Member Ruh noted the private community recreation area 
for use only by subdivision residents completely defeats the 
purpose of an urban village.  He added that HOA dues increase 
year after year, becoming unaffordable over time.  He expressed 
his hope that further development in the NMDSP will better reflect 
the concept of an urban village.  He asked to whom the units 
would be marketed. 

Mr. Scott Gale, Project Manager, Bluestone Communities, 
4100 Newport Place, Suite 730, Newport Beach, identified himself 
as a consultant on the proposed project.  He stated that the 
diversity of the units would make them marketable to a wide 
demographic. 

Council Member Ruh noted the larger sized units seem out of scale 
with an urban village and that the larger sized units would require 
a higher price point.  He emphasized that the median home price 
in San Bernardino County remains unaffordable to persons of 
moderate income. 

Mr. Gale advised that the proposed unit sizes are designed to have 
broad appeal and that the bulk of the units are smaller in scale and 
would be sold at lower price points.  He stated that the applicant 
believes the product fits the market and creates enough diversity 
to be marketable to a wider demographic. 

Council Member Ruh expressed his opinion that the demographic 
does not include the move–up homebuyer and that the units 
should be geared to moderate–income individuals.  He asked why 
two covered parking spaces per unit are proposed in a transit–
oriented development. 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 8 of 18 

Director of Community Development Lustro replied that the appli-
cant is expecting homebuyers would desire two covered parking 
spaces and that providing each unit with a two–car garage is 
critical to the project's success.  He noted the applicant 
acknowledges that at this point in the development of the NMDSP, 
though some homebuyers will use rail/mass transit, the rest will 
rely on their vehicles for transportation.  Future NMDSP residential 
developers might be more comfortable building urban–style 
products with less parking, he added, once critical mass begins to 
develop in North Montclair including mixed–use and local–serving 
retail projects and one or two parking structures. 

In light of the present drought conditions and the possible 
reduction in water distribution to Southern California from the 
Sacramento River Delta, Council Member Ruh asked if the devel-
oper has considered using drought–tolerant landscaping or 
synthetic turf at the proposed project.  He noted that though these 
measures might initially be costly, they would result in a savings of 
water and water costs over the long term. 

Director of Community Development Lustro answered, "Yes," 
adding that this and other projects would be included as examples 
in a new water–conservation Ordinance staff will be developing. 

Council Member Ruh noted doing so would reduce water and 
maintenance costs.  He inquired concerning the City's liability for a 
tot lot if one is included in the linear park. 

Director of Community Development Lustro advised that the 
amount of liability would presumably be similar to a public park. 

Council Member Ruh asked if the tot lot would more likely be 
located in the linear park or in the private community recreation 
area. 

Director of Community Development Lustro stated that Planning 
Commission only expressed an interest in the applicant including a 
children's play area in the project and has left the decision on 
whether to include a tot lot and where it should be located to the 
City Council. 

Council Member Ruh noted the added liability should one be 
placed in the public domain and the exclusivity of locating one in 
the private community recreation area.  He expressed his opinion 
that architecturally, the proposed development is "a very nicely 
done project" while conversely he questions its privatized nature 
by virtue of the "rather high" price points.  He noted the generally 
integrated nature of Montclair communities and suggested reduc-
ing the square footage of the units to make them more affordable. 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 9 of 18 

Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey commented as follows: 

1. He emphasized that the proposed project would be the first 
to be implemented in the NMDSP and will set a standard for 
future development within plan boundaries. 

2. He noted the concept behind the NMDSP is to create a 
downtown environment of local–serving retail and service 
businesses with walkable neighborhoods in which residents 
will rely less on their automobiles for transportation. 

3. He noted he carefully reviewed the plans for the proposed 
project and, in rereviewing the North Montclair Downtown 
Specific Plan, found that the proposed project is consistent 
with the guidelines of the plan.  He noted all of staff's and the 
consultant's work to design the project pursuant to plan 
specifications for North Montclair and that they did a ”great 
job." 

4. He expressed his opinion that the proposed residential 
subdivision offers a diversity of units that will certainly appeal 
to a variety of buyers in all income brackets. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey inquired as follows: 

1. What will be the function and responsibility of the HOA? 

Director of Community Development Lustro responded that 
the HOA would maintain landscaping, private streets and 
infrastructure within the development, and building exteriors. 

2. Would the City be responsible for maintaining all public 
streets and the linear park? 

Director of Community Development Lustro answered, "That 
is correct." 

3. What uses, requirements, and restrictions would be covered 
by the CC&Rs (besides property maintenance and garage–use 
regulations)? 

Director of Community Development Lustro advised that 
the  standard expectations for a residential condominium 
project, such as responsibilities for maintenance and repair 
for certain items, would apply, though nothing specific is 
indicated in Condition of Approval No. 15.  He stated that the 
Council has the discretion of including anything specific in 
the condition for inclusion in the CC&Rs. 

 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 10 of 18 

Concerning the CC&Rs, Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey requested the 
following: 

1. The City of Montclair be named as a third party to the CC&Rs 
so the City can assume those duties should the HOA either 
become defunct or found to be irresponsible in enforcing the 
CC&Rs. 

2. The City of Montclair be given annual HOA financial reports, 
including the operating budget and profit and loss statements, 
to ensure that the HOA is receiving sufficient operating funds, 
that the funds are being used responsibly to curtail future 
maintenance issues, and that the budget contains a summary 
of the HOA's reserve set aside to cover major common area 
component replacement costs. 

3. The following provisions be included: 

(a) Very strong maintenance rules and regulations standards 
to ensure the subdivision remains a well–maintained 
quality neighborhood for many years. 

(b) Rental standards including tenant screening and credit 
background checks. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey noted he is not opposed to including a 
playground area in the project to serve the residents and the 
public, though maintenance of the playground equipment could 
become a burden to the City.  He suggested staff determine 
whether a playground would be economically feasible for either the 
City or the HOA. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey asked what the signature tower elements 
would look like. 

Director of Community Development Lustro pointed out the 
proposed tower locations on a drawing in the Council Chambers, 
noting one of the towers would be located at the northeast corner of 
Moreno Street and Monte Vista Avenue as a landmark and at the 
other at the south end of the linear park as a terminus of that vista. 

Council Member Paulitz commented that it is not unusual for large 
developments to dedicate a park site for use by that subdivision or 
school site.  He expressed his opinion that including a park in the 
project is a good idea and that doing so would not be to the 
disadvantage of other neighborhoods but would basically offer 
recreation opportunities to the residents of the subdivision. 

 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 11 of 18 

Moved by Council Member Paulitz and seconded by  Council 
Member Raft that Resolution No. 08–2724, entitled, "A Resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Montclair Approving Tentative 
Tract Map No. 18213 and a Precise Plan of Design for a 290–
Unit Residential Development Within the North Montclair 
Downtown Specific Plan," be read by number and title only, 
further reading be waived, and it be declared adopted, noting 
approval of the Precise Plan of Design is subject to the 56 condi-
tions of approval listed in the agenda report on this item.* 

Mr. Loren Martens, 4285 Benito Street, Montclair, noted no 
mention was made of how all the new families of the subdivision 
would impact schools in the community. 

Director of Community Development Lustro advised that the 
Ontario–Montclair School District (OMSD) has been notified about 
the proposed project and has not commented about it. 

Council Member Paulitz suggested the new subdivision might help 
OMSD's declining student enrollment. 

Council Member Ruh noted he is not opposed to the public park 
site proposed in the project but rather the private community 
recreation area because it would preclude the residents from 
accessing recreational amenities outside of the subdivision itself.  
He suggested that playground areas be included elsewhere in the 
NMDSP as it develops. 

Director of Community Development Lustro advised that other 
public spaces are proposed in the plan; some are green spaces and 
others are gathering spaces more oriented toward commercial 
development.  As would be typical of a higher density urban area, 
there are no large expanses like traditional city parks containing 
room for sports activities, he added. 

As noted by Council Member Paulitz, Council Member Ruh 
expressed his hope that large families occupy the larger units to 
increase OMSD's enrollment. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey asked if signs will be placed at the Olive 
Street terminus and the terminus of the public street to the north 
advising that the streets would be opened in the future. 

Director of Community Development Lustro noted the Council is 
aware of similar situations in South Montclair with infill develop-
ment.  He advised that Olive Street would be opened to through 
traffic once construction on the project is completed and that a 
sign will be placed at the northern street terminus advising that 
the street would be opened to through traffic at some future time. 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 12 of 18 

City Manager McDougal pointed out that the builder of a subdivi-
sion in South Montclair requested that all homebuyers sign an 
acknowledgment indicating their understanding that a street in the 
subdivision would be opened to through traffic.  He suggested the 
same procedure could be followed in the residential subdivisions 
in the NMDSP. 

Noting the City has waited a long time for development to 
begin  in  North Montclair, Mayor Eaton expressed his opinion that 
the proposed project has been very well planned.  He stated he is 
not opposed to the playground and that the feasibility of its 
location in the linear park must be determined. 

 *The City Council unanimously waived the reading of the 
Resolution. 

Resolution No. 08–2724 was unanimously adopted by the 
following vote: 

AYES: Ruh, Raft, Paulitz, Dutrey, Eaton 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 

 
 VIII. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Council Member Paulitz requested that Item B–9 be removed from the 
Consent Calendar for comment. 

Moved by Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chairman Dutrey, seconded by Council 
Member/Director Raft, and carried unanimously to approve the follow-
ing Consent Items as presented: 

A. Approval of Minutes 

 1. Approval of Adjourned Joint Council/Agency Meeting of 
February 4, 2008 

The City Council and Redevelopment Agency Board approved 
the minutes of the Adjourned Joint City Council/Redevelop-
ment Agency Board meeting of February 4, 2008. 

 2. Approval of Regular Joint Council/Agency/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Meeting of February 4, 2008 

The City Council and Redevelopment Agency/Montclair Hous-
ing Corporation Boards approved the minutes of the Regular 
Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board meeting of February 4, 2008. 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 13 of 18 

B. Administrative Reports 

 1. Receiving and Filing of City Treasurer's Report 

The City Council received and filed the City Treasurer's Report 
for the month ending January 31, 2008. 

 2. Approval of City Warrant Register and Payroll 
Documentations 

The City Council approved the City Warrant Register dated 
February 19, 2008, totaling $622,590.74 and the Payroll 
Documentations dated December 9, 2007, amounting to 
$791,357.76, with $562,260.49 being the total cash 
disbursement and December 23, 2007, amounting to 
$743,602.49, with $509.453.06 being the total cash 
disbursement. 

 3. Receiving and Filing of Agency Treasurer's Report 

The Redevelopment Agency Board received and filed the 
Redevelopment Agency Treasurer's Report for the month 
ending January 31, 2008. 

 4. Approval of Agency Warrant Register 

The Redevelopment Agency Board approved the Redevel-
opment Agency Warrant Register dated 1.01.08–1.31.08 in 
the amounts of $5,718.65 for Project I; $790.48 for Project II; 
$84,857.42 for Project III; $74,239.35 for Project IV; and 
$96,474.81 for Project V. 

 5. Receiving and Filing of Montclair Housing Corporation 
Treasurer's Report 

The Montclair Housing Corporation (MHC) Board received 
and  filed the MHC Treasurer's Report for the month ending 
January 31, 2008. 

 6. Approval of MHC Warrant Register 

The MHC Board approved the MHC Warrant Register dated 
1.01.08–01.31.08 in the amount of $49,627.20. 

 7. Setting a Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of 
Resolution No. 08–2726 Approving a Precise Plan of 
Design  for the Exterior Renovation and Expansion of an 
Existing Commercial Building Within the North Montclair 
Downtown Specific Plan 

 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 14 of 18 

The City Council set a public hearing for Monday, March 3, 
2008, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers to consider 
adoption of Resolution No. 08–2726 approving a Precise Plan 
of Design  for the exterior renovation and expansion of an 
existing commercial building within the North Montclair 
Downtown Specific Plan. 

 8. Receive and File Status Report on Emergency Contracting 
Procedures Related to Certain Park Repairs at Kingsley 
and Saratoga Parks and Determine if There Is a Need to 
Continue the Action 

The City Council received and filed the status report on 
emergency contracting procedures related to certain park 
repairs at Kingsley and Saratoga Parks and determined there 
is a need to continue the action. 

 10. "No Action" on Alcoholic Beverage Permit Application – 
Dolce Café and Bakery 

The City Council took "no action" on the "On–Sale Beer and 
Wine" license application of Ms. Alice Han Lee for Dolce Café 
and Bakery, 8821 Central Avenue, Montclair, California. 

C. Agreements 

 1. Approval of Agreement No. 08–08  With Reach Out 
West End to Provide the Por La Vida Parent–Education 
Program 

The City Council approved Agreement No. 08–08 with Reach 
Out West End of the Por La Vida  Program. 

 2. Approval of Agreement No. 08–10  With R. Richard Fleener 
for Planning Services 

The City Council approved Agreement No. 08–10 with 
R. Richard Fleener for planning services. 

 3. Award of Contract for Montclair Plaza Landscape Improve-
ment Project to Southern California Landscape, Inc., in the 
Amount of $67,700 

Authorization of an Additional $39,700 Appropriation 
From the 1998 Redevelopment Project Area No. III Tax 
Allocation Bond Proceeds for the Montclair Plaza 
Landscape Improvement Project 

Approval of Agreement No. 08–11 With Southern 
California Landscape, Inc. 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 15 of 18 

Authorization of a $7,000 Construction Contingency 

The City Council took the following actions regarding the 
Montclair Plaza Landscape Improvement Project: 

(a) Awarded a contract to Southern California Landscape, 
Inc., in the amount of $67,700. 

(b) Authorized an additional $39,700 appropriation from 
the 1998 Redevelopment Project Area No. III Tax Alloca-
tion Bond proceeds. 

(c) Approved Agreement No. 08–11 with Southern California 
Landscape, Inc. 

(d) Authorized a $7,000 construction contingency. 

D. Resolutions 

 1. Adoption of Resolution No. 08–2723 Repealing Resolu-
tion No. 06–2624 Establishing a Revised Montclair Police 
Department Policy for Retention and Destruction of 
Records and Authorizing Destruction of Certain Police 
Department Records 

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 08–2723 repealing 
Resolution No. 06–2624 establishing a revised Montclair 
Police Department Policy for the Retention and Destruction 
of Records and authorizing destruction of certain Police 
Department records. 

 2. Adoption of Resolution No. 08–2727 Related to Seven 
Applications for State Funds Under the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program 

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 08–2727 related to 
seven applications for state funds under the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program. 

 
 IX. PULLED CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

B. Administrative Reports 

 9. Acceptance of Housing Improvement Task Force Action 
Plan 2008 and Authorization for Staff to Pursue Recom-
mendations Described Therein 

Council Member Paulitz noted the Action Plan 2008 document 
"Is very well done."  He commented as follows: 

 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 16 of 18 

(a) He noted Taylor Woodrow would not realize much of a 
savings by reducing the square footage of the Bellafina 
units unless more units can be added to the project. 

Director of Community Development Lustro advised that 
Taylor Woodrow would realize a significant savings by 
eliminating the third stories of units as it is planning to 
do in future phases. 

(b) He expressed his understanding that Foundation Area 
property management firms screen tenants, though 
language in Section II, "Recap:  Status of Action Plan 
2007," Item I, "Tenant Screening Programs," indicates 
otherwise. 

Director of Community Development Lustro responded 
that tenants are screened in many of the Foundation 
Areas, though some property owners are not so diligent 
in doing so. 

Moved by Council Member Paulitz, seconded by Mayor Eaton, 
and carried unanimously that the City Council accept Housing 
Improvement Task Force Action Plan 2008 and authorize staff 
to pursue recommendations described therein. 

 
 X. RESPONSE – None 
 
 XI. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. City Attorney/Agency Counsel 

 1. Closed Session Pursuant to Section 54956.9(a) of the 
Government Code Regarding Pending Litigation 

David Pikschus v. City of Montclair 

City Attorney Robbins requested the City Council meet in 
Closed Session on the above matter pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9(a). 

B. City Manager/Executive Director – No comments 

C. Mayor/Chairman 

 1. Mayor/Chairman Eaton noted there was a large turnout at the 
C.A.U.T.I.O.N. cleanup he participated in last Saturday that 
included Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey and San Bernardino County 
Fourth District Supervisor and Mrs. Ovitt and staff.  He 
asked that Fire Chief Ament relay his appreciation to the Code 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 17 of 18 

Enforcement Unit for all the hard work involved in conducting 
these cleanups. 

D. City Council/Agency Board 

 1. Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chairman Dutrey commented as follows: 

(a) He asked for an update on the electrical repairs at 
Kingsley and Saratoga Parks. 

Director of Redevelopment/Public Works Staats advised 
that the old equipment at both parks has been removed, 
new equipment is currently being installed, and the 
conduits are being prepared so the wiring can soon be 
pulled.  She noted volunteer laborers would assist with 
the wire pulling at both locations and that once the work 
has been completed, security guards will be placed at 
both parks by the contractor. 

Mayor Pro Tem Dutrey asked if the repairs to Kingsley 
Park would be completed in time for Little League opening 
ceremonies. 

Director of Redevelopment/Public Works Staats replied 
that the games may commence so long as the announcer's 
booth is not used. 

Mayor Eaton asked if the Police Department would 
continue patrolling the parks. 

City Manager McDougal answered, "Yes; we have to check 
the security guards." 

(b) He noted he would be absent from the March 3, 2008 
regular joint meeting. 

(c) He requested a report on the status of the City's meeting 
its inclusionary housing requirement. 

 2. Council Member/Director Ruh noted he was absent from the 
last meeting because he was involved in efforts in 
Washington, D.C., to lobby certain members of Congress and 
the U.S. Senate to approve an emergency "economic stimulus 
package" (the Rebates and Economic Stimulus for the 
American People Act of 2008 recently signed into law by 
President Bush) that would provide a quick infusion of cash 
into the economy to encourage consumer spending and 
business investment.  He noted the rebates are probably not 
enough considering the further intensification of the housing 
correction, tighter credit conditions amid increased concerns 



Joint City Council/Redevelopment Agency Board/Montclair 
Housing Corporation Board Minutes – February 19, 2008 Page 18 of 18 

about credit quality and ongoing turmoil in financial markets, 
and higher oil prices.  He advised that low–income advocacy 
groups, realtors, and mortgage brokers would be working 
toward finding a longer–term solution to these important 
issues.  He noted he will give the Council a study from the 
California Budget Project, a nonpartisan nonprofit organiza-
tion seeking fiscal reforms to benefit low– and moderate–
income Californians, that reports on the lack of housing 
affordability and its efforts to address the issue at the state 
level.  He added that he will be in Sacramento on Friday 
regarding similar efforts. 

E. Committee Meeting Minutes 

 1. Minutes of Personnel Committee Meeting of February 4, 
2008 

The City Council received and filed the Personnel Commit-
tee  meeting minutes of February 4, 2008, for informational 
purposes. 

 
 XII. ADJOURNMENT OF REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AND MONTCLAIR 

HOUSING CORPORATION BOARDS OF DIRECTORS 

At 8:12 p.m., Chairman Eaton adjourned the Redevelopment Agency and 
Montclair Housing Corporation Boards of Directors. 

At 8:12 p.m., the City Council went into Closed Session regarding pending 
litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a). 
 
 XIII. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS 

At 8:35 p.m., the City Council returned from Closed Session.  Mayor 
Eaton announced that the City Council met in Closed Session regarding 
pending litigation, information was received and direction given to 
staff, and no further announcements would be made at this time. 

 
 XIII. ADJOURNMENT OF CITY COUNCIL 

At 8:36 p.m., Mayor Eaton adjourned the City Council. 

Submitted for City Council/Redevelop-
ment Agency Board/Montclair Housing 
Corporation Board approval, 

 
 
 

  
 Yvonne L. Smith 
 Transcribing Secretary 


